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1. Name of Property
historic name New Ipswich Center Village Historic District

other names/site number N/A

2. Location Bounded roughly by Turnpike Road, Porter Hill Road, Main Street, Route 123A,

street & number Preston Hill Road, Manley Road, King Road N/A L _Inot for publication
city, town New Ipswich N/A L ]vicinity
state New Hampshire code NH county Hillsborough code NHO11 Zip code 03071
3. Classification
Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
private ] building(s) Contributing Noncontributing
KXl public-local [XR district 101 35 buildings
[ ] public-State [Isite 10 1 sites
[ ] public-Federal [ ] structure 3 0 structures
[ ] object 3 ' 2 objects
117 38  Total
Name of related muitiple property listing: Number of contributing resources previously
N/A listed in the National Register 1

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify that this

@ nomination [ request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
Natuonal Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.
In my opmnon the property !] meets [_]does not meet the National Register criteria. [ Isee continuation sheet.

July 25, 1991
Signature of certifying o(n;al @ [W/_.

Date
State or Federal agency and bureau New Hampshire

In my opinion, the property D meets Ddoes not meet the National Register criteria. DSee continuation sheet.

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification , s <7 LA

|, hereby, certify that this property is: g2 -~nd Nocioter
entered in the National Register. O{ / /
wD See continuation sheet. : : _ Z 3 ; /

[ ] determined eligible for the National
Register. l:l See continuation sheet.

[ determined not eligible for the
National Register.

Dremoved from the National Register.
[Jother, (explain:)

A

/f@i}nature of the Keeper Date of Action




6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (enter categories from instructions)
DOMESTIC: single structure

DOMESTIC: secondary structure
AGRICULTURE/SUBSISTENCE: agricultural outbldg.
AGRICULTURE/SUBSISTENCE: processing

(see continuation sheet 6.1)

Current Functions (enter categories from instructions)
DOMESTIC: single structure

DOMESTIC: seccTndary structure

COMMERCE/TRADE: department store

EDUCATION: school

RELIGION: religious structure

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(enter categories from instructions)

Greek Revival

Federal
Georgian

Materials (enter categories from instructions)

foundation _STONE

walls WEATHERBOARD
SHINGLE

roof ASPHALT

other WOOD
METAL

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

The New Ipswich Center Village Historic District comprises the primary

settlement area in the town of New Ipswich which

southwestern Hillsborough County.

the 1730s to
this area
represented
resources
religious,

the 1920s.

are
relating to the
and educational life

space, all but one
descriptions.
character of the Center Village.

they are discussed
associated.
footprint

as part of the
(The guideline wused to
of 1less than 50 square

The District possesses
periods of historical development and architectural styles spanning from
The most densely populated section of
became the center of community life.
primarily residential,

commercial,

Buildings
size, and scale were not described and

is located in

the grouping also

industrial,

The examples of

of minor

these buildings
less than 50 years

[X] See continuation sheet

rural
examples of

town,
Although the structures
indicates
professional,
of New Ipswich, as will become clear
based on the following property descriptions. open
of which are contributing, follow the numbered site
Although undeveloped, these areas reinforce the historic
significances,
counted individually although
larger property with which they are

determine

feet,

were a
of age,
lacking a permanent foundation, and not housing a significant activity.)



8. Statement of Significance s,

Cenrtifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other propemes
[ ] nationally []statewide KA locally

Applicable National Register Criteria [_JA [ ]B [kxdc []D

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [_JA [J8 [Jc [o [Je [f [la

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Significant Dates

Architecture 1735 - ¢.1930 N/A

Cultural Affiliation

N/A

Significant Person _Architect/Builder g
N/A : .. N/A

State sugnmcance of prOpeny, and ;ustlfy cntena cntena considerations, and areas and perlods of sugmflcance noted above.

The New IpSWlCh Center Vlllage HlStorlC DlStrlCt is ellglble for
the National Register of Historic Places under criterion C, for
architecture. It possesses 1integrity of 1location, design,
setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association. The
noncontributing resources present do not detract significantly
from the overall character. The district is the historic center
of the town of New Ipswich, a mid-late eighteenth century
village. In the early 19th century the Third New Hampshire
Turnpike passed through the village, making it an important
trading point along the route. During the late 19th and early
20th centuries, the village became a summer retreat for many
people from the Boston area. Natives and inhabitants from New
Ipswich’s Center Village included men of statewide prominence who
were instrumental in several New England industries, including
textile manufacturing, piano manufacturing, cabinet making, and
oatmeal production. Others were noted scholars, artists,
merchants, antiquarians, physicians, academics, and musicians.
The district’s period of significance runs from 1735, the date of
the original grant (and the earliest resource - a fragment of 0ld
Country Road) to the end of the summer visitor period about 1930.

Located within the District are approximately 150 properties,
ranging in date from the 1730s to the 1980s, with the majority
built prior to 1850. The District includes six present and
former school buildings, two churches, two cemeteries, a town
pound, a library, three 1late 20th century commercial buildings
(all located along the Turnpike), a former mid-20th century post
office and a former early 19th century post office/law office,
two civic buildings (a town hall and a mid-19th century fire, now
police, station), a mid-19th century meeting hall, several
buildings that were used as taverns or hotels, and three former
19th century shops.

KX] see continuation sheet



9. Major Bibliographical References

@See continuation sheet
Previous documentation on file (NPS):

[:Ipreliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67) Primary location of additional data:
has been requested _ [ state historic preservation office
[xx] previously listed in the National Register (Site #84) . []other State agency
[ ] previously determined eligible by the National Register [ ]Federal agency
[:]designated a National Historic Landmark [ ]Local government
[ Jrecorded by Historic American Buildings [ TUniversity
Survey # Other
Drecorded by Historic American Engineering Specify repository:
Record # New Ipswich H:'Lst.orical Society, New Ipswich

10. Geographical Data
Acreage of property __approximately 325 acres

UTM References

Y T T T e T T BL1|||1||||.||LL|¢4|
Zone Easting Northing Zone  Easting Northing
oF T B I A T B T T DL Lo Lo v L by Ly

See continuation sheet

Verbal Boundary Description

Boundaries of the nominated district are indicated by the dashed line on the
attached sketch map.

|:| See continuation sheet

Boundary Justification

The district boundary is drawn to include those properties in the Center Village
which represent the qualities and characteristics of this architecturally and historically
important settlement. They are drawn to exclude areas whose density and integrity

are inconsistent with the eligible grouping.

I:]See continuation sheet

11. Form Prepared By —
nameftile Village Improvement Society of New Ipswich; Elizabeth Hengen; Christine Fonda
organization _c/o Greg Hanselman date May 1, 1991

“street & number __Main Street : telephone _603-878-3761

city or town ___New Ipswich state New Hampshire zip code 03071
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COMMERCE/TRADE: department store
COMMERCE/TRADE: specialty store
COMMERCE/TRADE: professional
DOMESTIC: hotel

EDUCATION: school

RELIGION: religious structure
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#1  Reverend Stephen Farrar House, c¢.1762 (Turnpike Road) -
Contributing Building

This woodframe .Georgian center-chimney dwelling sits, surrounded by

shade trees, on a rise close to the Turnpike at the top of Town Hill, . .

facing south, at the west corner of the District. It has received many
additions over the years, but the main house represents the oldest
surviving major dwelling within the District. The foundation of the
main house is of small, layered irreqularly cut granite stones, which
support a typical Georgian 2 1/2 story 5-bay house with a large central
chimney. The front doorway has flat pilasters with caps and a handsome
Georgian entablature. The exterior door is of vertical boards with 3
strap hinges, and transom window above. The window sash (all
replacements) is 12/12 on the first floor and 8/12 on the second floor
and in the gables. The window trim is flat. The flat corner posts in
both front and rear have molded caps. The roof is asphalt shingle.

An early short gable-roof ell extends to the east on a concrete and
rubble foundation. It has received recent additions of a shed-roof
dormer to the north and a further addition enclosing what was once a
porch which extended around the ell. It now features a shallow hip
roof. The north side of the old ell is of old brick; it extends two
bays wide across the rear of the main house. A woodframe addition has
recently been added which extends it by one bay.

To the west extends a 1 story short ell with a gable roof and a front
porch supported by slender square posts. The floor is brick, which also
faces the front at the foundation level. Two windows with 8/12 sash and
an entry door of vertical boards with o0ld strap hinges face the street.
The ell leads to a 2-story woodframe addition having a saltbox
configuration. Both ell and addition were added in 1978. The addition
stands directly on the ground, and contains 12/12 and 8/12 window sash
similar to that on the main house. There is a single, small, low
chimney at the east end. The roof is asphalt shingle.

A photograph in the Historical Society shows the main house with a long,
l-story woodframe ell extending to the rear from the northwest corner.
It was once an 18th century house situated across Thayer Road to the
west, which belonged to Peter Warren, who worked for Parson Farrar. It
contained 2 8/12 windows, a 4-panel entrance door and a shed door. It
was removed many years ago.
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Additions have been carefully done, and the main house retains many of
its antique features, such as wide board pine floors throughout,
elaborate paneling and fireplaces. One small room is completely paneled

with 20-22 inch pine boards; one interior paneled shutter remains in
this room.

In one downstairs room is found a built-in elaborately carved and arched
corner cupboard. It is flanked by fluted pilasters with a frieze above.
In 1924 the owner of ' the house offered the cupboard for sale, and a
descendent of Parson Farrar who happened to be visiting in town
purchased it and donated it to the New Ipswich Historical Society. When
the Society had carpenters look at the cupboard, they advised that it
would be almost impossible to remove it without damage to it and the
room, and it was decided to leave it in place. The agreement was that
if the Historical Society should cease to exist, the cupboard was to go
to the New Hampshire Historical Society.

#1A Barn, c.1935 (Thayer Road) - Non-Contributing Building

To the north of the house stands a barn/carriage shed which is located
on property which used to be across Thayer Road from the house property.
In 1933 the road, which had passed close around the corner of the house,
was relocated to the west, to improve the intersection, and this barn

was built on the grounds of the main property. The building stands
gable end to the south, on a granite rubble foundation, with a rear
foundation of concrete blocks. Centered on the south side 1is a wide

square sliding door with a 4-light transom set in the wall above, with a
6/6 window above that. A single doorway is on the right and a single
window with 6/6 sash on the left. There are 3 evenly spaced 6/6 windows
on the east side, and 2 placed together on the west. The north contains
2 6/6 windows centered one above the other. All have flat trim and
sills. The building has an asphalt shingle roof. The building has been

altered from a barn to a workshop, although it maintains its exterior
appearance.

The original barn of this property stood just to the west of the house,
where the new ell is located.
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#1B Goat Shed/Garden Shed, c.1900 (Thayer Road) - Contributing
Building

This small woodframe building sits behind the main house to the north,

overlooking the extensive grounds. It consists of a west section with

8/8 windows and vertical board door; the addition placed perpendicularly
to the east has large screened windows on the east and west and has been
converted into a garden house. Its shed roof is covered with roll
roofing. An old silver maple tree has grown around the roof.

Reverend Stephen Farrar, the builder of this house, was one of four
siblings, .children of Deacon Samuel Farrar of Concord, Massachusetts;

who settled in New Ipswich in the 1late 1750’s and 1760'’s. All were
prominent citizens of the Town and highly influential in its early
development.

Stephen Farrar (1738-1809) arrived in 1758-59, at the age of 20. A
member of a prominent Concord family, related to the Barretts and Minots
(#70 and #71), Farrar had just graduated from Harvard where he was a

classmate of John Adams. He was ordained in 1760, and became New
Ipswich’s first and only minister, a position he held with distinction
until his death in 1809, fifty years later. His sister, Rebecca, °

married Dr. John Preston I and lived in the Preston-King House (#30),
his brother James 1lived in Town until his untimely death in 1767, and
his brother Timothy, who taught school here and became a distinguished
citizen and Justice of the New Hampshire Supreme Court and Court of
Common Pleas, whose house was on the site of the Charles S. Brown House
(#32), all made substantial contributions to the development of their
town. Stephen Farrar lived in this house until his last few years when
he moved to his son’s house across the Turnpike (#47).

The next owner was Benjamin Adams (d.1825), who operated a most unusual
tavern in the house, where no alcoholic beverages were served. It was
one of four taverns which opened on the Turnpike shortly after it

opened, and was very popular and well thought of despite the prohibition
of alcohol.

A later owner, Joseph Buckman (pre-1850), manufactured tinware on the
property.

In the mid-19th century' the house was in the Shattuck family. Francis
Shattuck and his father were the only masons in town at that time.
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#2 Mrs. Mattie Russell House, c.1880 (Turnpike Road) - Contributing
Building

This 1 1/2 story, L-shaped, woodframe Second Empire residence occupies a
rise above the Turnpike, facing. south. It sits on a granite block

foundation, and has a bell-curve Mansard roof  sheathed with asphalt =

shingles. The entrance is in the easternmost bay of the facade of the
main house, and has a flat hood supported by a large fancy sawn brackets
with pendants. A bay window fills the other side of the facade; it has
a brick foundation and paired flat-sawn eave brackets with paneling
beneath. Capped corner posts are surmounted by a flushboard frieze
extending around the house, with molded eaves above and paired flat-
sawn brackets. There are two dormers in the center of the main house;
they have flat trim and shallow flatboard pediments with molded eaves
with paired brackets beneath the pediments. A similar dormer is on the
east side of the main house, and two on the ell. To the west there is a
single bay, enclosed to the rear, with an entrance; the front half is a
small porch featuring flat-sawn brackets and a support made of a square
column with openwork and decorative detail in the center. To the east
the ell has a 3-bay hip-roof porch with the same brackets and openwork
supports; the bay closest to the house is enclosed and features a single
window and an entrance. Window sash throughout is 2/2. A more recent
garage with a rectangular overhead door is found on a lower level below
the porch. A single capped chimney rises from the west portion of the
roof in the main house; there is another in the rear; and a third tall
chimney rises from the ridge in the ell.

This house was built for Mrs. Mattie Russell about 1880 by Dr. Francis
N. Gibson, who lived in the former Stephen Farrar Jr. House (#47) at the

crest of Porter Hill Road. Mrs. Russell remained here through the early
20th century.

#3 Lawrence-Phelps House, c.1840 (Turnpike Road) - Contributing
Building

This woodframe 1 1/2 story cape faces south toward the Turnpike; its
brick walk and low granite block retaining wall separating it from the

street. The Greek Revival doorway features a molded surround with
corner blocks with pateras and partial sidelights with multi-grid
muntins, and paneling beneath, with a tablet over the door. The

foundation of the house is granite block, with exposed brick on the
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Section number

downhill (east) side. A 1 story bay window was added in about 1900 to
the two southeast front bays; it stands on a brick foundation and has
windows with 6/6 and 8/8 sash and paneling beneath. Other sash is 2/2
replacement on the first floor. Two small gabled dormers, with
flushboarded gables and 3/6 sash windows with flat trim pierce the south

roof, probably added about 1900. A single narrow,chimney rises from the

southeast front of the asphalt shingle roof.

To the rear (north) a 2-story wing with a recent oriel window on the
east elevation continues to a 1 1/2 story ell with 2 entrances which has
a 2-story barn attached on the northeast corner. The wing, ell and barn
sit on granite block foundations. There is a chimney which rises from
the roof where the wing and ell join. The barn has a gable roof with

eave returns and flat corner posts with caps. It features a single
sliding door with another small door above it and a 6/6 window in the
gable.

One of several Greek Revival houses in this area, this house was built
by Jeremiah Lawrence, probably in the 1840’s, as it appears
with his name on the 1850 map in the Town History.

'In 1857, the house was sold to Lorenzo Corydon Beman Phelps (1826-1898)
who had come to New Ipswich from Peterborough in about 1850. Phelps was
an express messenger between New Ipswich and Boston, who later had a

- livery stable and stage routes to Peterborough and Wilton. His son
Wilbur Leete Phelps (1867-1920) was the proprietor of the 01d Corner
Store, Town Clerk and Treasurer for many years, and a State
Representative, and 1lived here after his father’s death. His daughter,
Abbie L. Balch Phelps, then resided here until 1950. Mrs. Phelps was an
active local historian, whose efforts have contributed greatly to the
Town’s Historical Society collections and Historical Booklets. Her
niece, Hazel Balch Moore, succeeded her as Town Historian; she lives in
the Hammond-Isaacs-Balch House (#24).

Another house, built by John Batchelder, existed until 1863 between this
house and the Mrs. Mattie Russell House (#2) just up the hill. It was
torn down by L.C.B. Phelps, as it was in poor condition. It was alleged

to be the first house built west of the Turnpike junction with Main
Street.
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#4 Moses Brickett House, c.1850 (Turnpike Road) - Contributing
Building

This is yet another example of the type of 1 1/2 story Greek Revival

sidehall house so prevalent in the Center Village on and near the

Turnpike. It sits gable end to the street at the top of a terraced rise
on the south side of the Turnpike, with a flight of granite block steps
near the street bordered by vertical granite posts with chains linking
them, leading to another terrace with a shorter flight of steps leading
to the doorway. The entry, placed in the northeast bay of the facade,
has a 6-panel door with multi-grid full sidelights and another surround
with raised S-scroll detail and corner blocks with pateras. The flat
corner boards are capped by the eave returns. Recently concrete
footings have been poured over a presumably old granite foundation; they
progect outward from the foundation and are painted black. The window
sash is 6/6 on the ground floor and 2/2 on the upper, with replacement
blinds throughout. The windows feature flat trim with a slightly peaked
molded head. Two gable dormers project from both east and west; they
were probably added in the late 19th century. They have 6/6 sash and a
decorative openwork flat scalloped eave molding. A chimney projects
‘between the dormers on the west. An ell extends to the rear of the
house; it is one narrow bay wider than the house on each side, with an
entrance on each side, facing the street. An exterior cinder block
chimney, painted white rises on the east wall of the ell.

An attractive garden lines the driveway to the west of the house. Moses
Brickett, who built this house in about 1850, was a cigar manufacturer
who had his place of business further east on the Turnpike, almost
opposite the Stephen Thayer Cigar Shop (#15), on the south side of the
Turnpike, just east of the Hassall House (#18). He employed about 40
people, and also manufactured ink, blacking and essences. The building
burned in 1877. Shortly after it was built, the house passed to P. H.
Tufts. In 1892 Mrs. William J. Fisher (1810-1892) was living here. She
was the mother of Albert G. Fisher (1837 or 38-1871) who served in the
Civil War, and whose hand-written pocket diary for the year 1863 is in
the possession of the New Ipswich Historical Society. Lieut. Fisher
describes the action at the Battle of Chancellorsville and Gettysburg.

Among its later owners was Otto Weismann, the last blacksmith who worked

at the 0l1d Blacksmith Shop (#12) on Temple Road. Weismann worked there
well into the 20th century. :

A photograph in the owner’s possession shows the house as it looked at
the turn of the century, with a piazza across the front and wrapped
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around the east side of the facade; it had elaborate flat-sawn
decorative balusters on the covered porch, with decorative square posts.
The house also had decorative flat-sawn molding with arrow motifs across
a pediment and on the raking cornices with the same S-scroll. The same
motif was repeated on the dormers. All this detail has Dbeen lost
except for the flat-sawn detail on the dormers.

#4A Garaqge, late 19th century - Non-Contributing Building

Built into the hill on its west elevation, a short distance to the
west, stands a north-facing gabled 1 1/2 story building. The interior
foundation wall is of granite rubble where it is against the hill, and
the other parts of the foundation have cement blocks and concrete,
probably replacement. There was once a garage opening on the east side;
this is now an entry door with a hood, and the overhead garage door is
on the north side. The upper story has a recent large center window
flanked by 2 smaller 6/6 windows. The sides and rear of the building
have 6/6 window sash and appear to date from an earlier period.

All of the structures have asphalt shingled roofs.

#5 Fletcher-Chandler House, c¢.1840 (Turnpike Road) - Contributing
Building

This 1 1/2 story woodframe sidehall Greek Revival residence stands gable
end to the Turnpike on its south side where Town Hill begins its rise.
It sits on a foundation of granite block and rubble, with a brick
section partially exposed on the downhill side (east). This portion
contains a 3/3 window set in clapboard facing, and another small window
to the rear. A shed-roof screened porch added in about 1870 extends
across the front of the house, obscuring the recessed Greek Revival
doorway with its molded surround with corner blocks with pateras. The
porch has Italianate elements - scroll-sawn brackets and balustrade.
The corner posts have molded caps. There are paired windows with 2/1
sash and blinds in the front and rear gables. The remaining windows
also have 2/1 sash and blinds. The gable features simple molded eaves.
A single chimney rises from the asphalt shingled roof to the west,
piercing a dormer with paired windows, probably added later.
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A short rear ell with a small porch and entrance and another chimney on
the west side, leads to a frame barn, gable-end to the street behind the
southeast corner of the house. It has one window above with 6/6 sash,
flat trim and a rectangular modern wooden overhead garage door.

The 1850 map shows that this was one of two houses owned by Roby
Fletcher (1803-1902), a wheelwright; the second, up the hill to the
west, adjoining this property, no longer stands.

By 1908, the house belonged to James Chandler, proprietor of the

blacksmith shop on Temple Road (#12), who also lived at #14 Dbefore
moving here. .

#6  Appleton Manor, c.1817/1870/1910 (Turnpike Road) - Contributing
Building | .

This substantial property faces south at the intersection of Main Street
and the Turnpike. Although commenced in about 1817 in the Federal
style, the main house has undergone numerous historic alterations over
the years. Its current appearance reflects circa 1870 and 1910
renovations done when the building served as a summer hotel.

The white-painted brick main house stands high on a fine cut granite
block foundation, with a brick walk leading from the street. Separating
the property from the street is a white-painted fence of alternating
long and short slender round balusters with two horizontal elements
holding them together, with large square wooden posts with molded caps

flanking the three entrances. The fence sits on 1long cut granite
blocks, and is built in sections as it descends the slope of Turnpike
Hill. Two large square dgranite block posts with caps anchor the far

ends of the fence. A pair of lanterns surmount the posts on either side
of the driveway.

A drawing in the Kidder and Gould Town History of 1852 shows the house
with its original Federal appearance. The Historical Society possesses
several photographs made before the 1870 alterations. The recessed
doorway seems to be unaltered, with its reeded inner surround and semi-
elliptical fanlight with tracery, reeded arched surround and partial
sidelights with recessed panels beneath. The outer large flat pilasters
and flat entablature with its heavy molded cornice are a recent addition
in the Colonial Revival style. A pair of carriage lights flank the
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doorway. An old photograph, although indistinct, appears to show the
entrance with a portico supported by columns.

The facade has three bays, which appear in the 1852 illustration with
windows which appear to be the same unusual ones still in place. They

consist of a central replacement 12/12 sash flanked by three vertical

lights over three vertical lights, all set into a small molded surround
within a single masonry opening. The partitions separating the center
section from the side portions are reeded except for the center window
on the second floor, where a doorway was cut into the facade during the
1870 alterations, when a piazza was installed. It has been restored to
its former appearance, but without the reeding. Windows on the sides
and rear of the house are replacement 12/12 sash, with simple molded
surrounds. All windows have replacement blinds.

In the 1870 alterations, the house received the addition of a French
roof, which is now clad in asphalt shingles. It has 3 dormers on each
elevation; these are gabled and embellished with a flatboard frame with
scrollwork at the base of each. However, the center dormer of the
facade has a larger window than the others, with paired 6/6 sash. There
is a small peak along the curb of the roof over the center dormer.
There are four end chimneys with recessed panels and caps, these appear
to be original. '

A 1l 1/2 story woodframe wing on a concrete foundation extending to the
west was built by the present owners circa 1985, and successfully
retains the style of the main house. The two windows on the front
elevation have 12/12 sash and blinds and a semicircular fanlight in a
molded surround over each one. Three dormers with molded eaves break
the eaveline and have 8/12 sash with flat frames with a simple scroll
foot which reflect the design of the dormers of the main house. A small
older sunporch one bay wide extends on a granite rubble foundation from
the southwest corner of the house in front of the wing. It has two
windows in arched surrounds facing west, with a keystone motif found on

much other Colonial Revival work here. There is a doorway to their
right and a single bay with another similar multi-grid window on the
front. An inner Victorian door with two arched glazed panels gives

access to the house.

#6A Barns and Sheds, mid-19th century - Contributing Building

To the west across the circular driveway stands a complex of attached
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woodframe barns and sheds which extends approximately 120 feet on a
north-south axis. The main and largest barn is oriented east-west
facing mid-19th century barn on a granite block and rubble foundation
with a gabled roof surmounted by a square cupola. It has a double
sliding door on its south elevation with several small windows. It
appears to be the same barn shown in a panoramic photograph of the Town -
dating from the early 1860’'s, which is in the Collection of the
Historical Society. The barn has wood shingle siding on the lower east
elevation. '

A l-story structure extends toward the house from the northeast corner
of the barn. It has 3 arched carriage shed openings, now screened, and
older Colonial Revival detail with arches with keystone motifs, and

board and batten siding on the south elevation; remaining siding is
clapboard.

A mid-19th century wing extends to the south from the southwest end of

the barn, built into the hill. It now has two wide arched openings with
keystone motifs on its east elevation.

To the north of the barn are more gabled sheds leading to another barn,
.on an east-west axis, which has board and batten siding. The barn has an
oculus in the gable and a transom with 5 3-light sections and an arched
door above a board and batten sliding door. The west elevation of the
sheds has a series of 7 arched carriage bays, with a series of equipment
bays with paneled doors further to the north. There 1is a further
extension of sheds for equipment with board and batten siding to the
north. A small woodframe gabled shed with a south door and a window and
an asphalt roof sits to the north near the pond.

#6B Garage, c.1940 - Non-Contributing Building

Another long building separate from the large complex on the same axis
sits with its south gable facing the Turnpike. It is a 4-bay garage
with paneled overhead doors with arched surrounds and keystone motifs.

It has a cinder block chimney on its northwest corner and an asphalt
roof.

Construction of Appleton Manor was begun by John Fales Hills (1780-
1819) probably circa 1817, but he died before it was completed. Hills
was a prosperous farmer and businessman who operated a store in the
Center Village which stood here until he moved it across the street to
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the site of P.T.A. Park (Lot A). The house was completed by its second
owner, Ephraim Searle, who died in 1824. The next owner was Raymond
Stratton (1790-1838), who was succeeded by Joseph Appleton (1791-1840),
a nephew of Samuel and Nathan Appleton and Dolly Everett, who owned the
Dolly Everett House (#77).

In 1842 the house passed to Joseph Barrett (1774-1852) and his wife Mary
Appleton, another aunt of Joseph Appleton. It was during this period
that Samuel Appleton imported the French scenic wallpaper as a gift for
his sister Mary. It has been removed, but is pictured in the album of
photographs by Charles Plumer in the Historical Society. Joseph
remained here until his death, after which the house was owned by his
daughter Mary (1816-1872) and her husband Samuel W. Bent, who added a
west wing. Charles S. Brown owned the house for a few years before it
was converted to public use.

The French roof was added circa 1870 by Billy Hewes, who also added a 2
story ell with dormers which contained a dance hall on the third floor
as well as the 2-story piazza which covered the front of the house and
ell. He was the first to have a tavern in the house. An elaborate
wrought iron fence in front of the property was put in place at this
time as well.

Further alterations took place under the ownership of Joseph Silver, who
had owned the 1808 House across the street (#8) and opened an inn here

which could accommodate 75 visitors. In 1915 the wrought iron fence was
removed .

The house then passed back into private ownership in 1932, and the wing
and piazza were removed.

In front of the house a bandstand was built in 1903 for public
entertainment, and was removed in 1911.

#7 Dr. John Preston House, 1802 (Turnpike Road) - Contributing
Building

The Dr. John Preston House was the first house in the Village to be
located on the Turnpike, which was opened in 1800. It is a Federal 5-
bay, 2 1/2 story house with brick ends 2 bays wide and a hip roof
covered with asphalt shingles. It rests on a granite block foundation
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on the north side of the Turnpike. Two tall chimneys rise from either
end, with a third one in the rear wing. Window sash 1is replacement
12/12 on the first story and 8/12 on the second; the windows are framed
with modest caps on the first floor and have flat trim and blinds. The
centrally positioned entrance has a period Federal surround with a
panelled door, framed by tapered flat capped pilasters, with a later -
tripartite transom of colored glass, with etched floral and leaf design.
The doorway is sheltered by a portico supported by Doric columns,
probably added in the Greek Revival period. The portico has a flat
frieze below the heavy molded cornice with dentils. '

A 2-story frame wing extends to the north behind the house with a

further 1l-story gabled wing with hip roof. An entrance on its east
side leads onto a small porch with decorative sawn brackets and
balusters (c.1900). From the northeast corner another short 1 1/2 story

gabled wing extends to the east; this has another larger screened porch
with arched openings at its east end. -

White-painted picket fencing separates the property from the street and
it from the adjoining properties.

A photograph dating from the early 1860’'s shows that by this time the
house had been altered to 3 1/2 stories by the addition of a tall, wide
pediment. It is probable that at this time the two end chimneys were
lengthened to their present appearance, and that the Greek Revival
portico was also added, as all these features show in the photograph.
Sometime shortly after a photograph taken at the 150th Anniversary
parade of New Ipswich in 1900, a 2 story bay window was added in the two
east bays of the facade. This third photograph shows that the house had
2/2 window sash on the first two floors and 6/6 sash in the flushboard
pediment, with a single attic window above with 6/9 sash. In about
1960, the roof was restored to its present hip-roofed appearance; the
bay window had been removed earlier. There was a barn in the rear of
the house, which has disappeared.

Dr. John Preston (II) (1770-1828), who built this house, was the son of
Dr. John Preston (I), an early settler and local doctor, who built the

Preston-King House (#30). The two men were in practice together until
the father’s death in 1803, and were the town’s only physicians for many
years.

John Preston (II) married Elizabeth Champney, daughter of Ebenezer, who
lived on Main Street in the Champney-Preston House (#63). Dr. Preston
also built a medical office and apothecary shop just west of this house.
It was a narrow brick building, later used as a dwelling; it was torn
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down in 1964.

After Preston’s death, the house was occupied by Henry Isaacs, who
arrived in New Ipswich circa 1822, and ran a store at the junction with
Temple Road, then at the 0ld Corner Store opposite this house. He had
previously 1lived in the Hammond-Isaacs-Balch House (#24) on the -

Turnpike. He was active in local business affairs and became President
of the Bank.

By 1850, Edward P. Edwards, proprietor of the 1808 House (#8), was
living here.

During the late 19th century, the house passed to Henry Otis Preston
(1820-1902), a nephew of Dr. John Preston (II). He worked with Stephen
Thayer manufacturing cigars, served as postmaster, and was active in
civic affairs. His daughter, Ellen, and her husband Charles E.
Robinson, a grain inspector in Boston and Chicago, moved here
permanently in 1905. Their son, Henry (d. 1954), and granddaughter
Margaret were successive owners, until in 1977 it passed out of the
family.

#8 1808 House, 1808 (Turnpike Road at Main Street) - Contributing
Building

This rambling 2-story woodframe building consists of a main Federal
house that faces north onto the Turnpike, a 2-story wing on the west
side, and 2 large, continuous additions at the rear (south). It rests
on granite block and rubble on the sides and wings; the front of the
building rests directly on the ground.

The original house is a 2-story Federal building, 5 bays wide, with a
hip roof. Only one of what were possibly two or four chimneys survive.
The centrally-positioned entrance has flat pilasters, a plain frieze and
a molded cornice. The door is 6-paneled and likely original, although
glass has been inserted in the upper two panels. A 5-light transom is
above the door. Windows have 6/6 sash, narrow, molded frames, and
blinds. The window directly over the entrance is smaller. A narrow
wood band separates the first and second stories.

A shallow one-story shed-roofed addition toward the front of the east
side serves as a second entrance; it probably dates from the early 20th
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century; it does not appear in a photograph taken in 1875.

On the west side is a two-story gabled addition, slightly recessed from
the main house, and probably early 20th century, as it does not show in
the same photograph. At the east end are double doors with multi-

lights, possibly late 19th century; a second door at the west end- -

appears to be an altered Georgian door. Like the main house, sash is
6/6, but the window frames are flat and lack blinds. A narrow chimney
rises near the west end. The lower section of another chimney, now
suppressed, is on the west exterior.

The northernmost of the two rear additions contains fairly regularly
spaced windows with 6/6 and 12/12 sash. A tall chimney rises from the
ridge. Although the exact date of this section is not known, it appears
to date from the mid-19th century. A shed-roof screened porch shelters
another entrance on the east side.

The southernmost addition was probably once a barn; its gable end is
partially visible at the north end. Windows are similar to those on the
northern section, and contain 12/12 sash on the east elevation and 6/6
on the west. There is a centrally positioned chimney. A small 1l-story
‘gabled ell extends to the east from the rear southeast corner. It has a
shed-roofed entrance next to the building.

A photograph taken circa 1875 shows a one-story porch extending the
width of the facade. By 1905, it had been replaced by a two-story porch

with a turned railing and decorative sawn post brackets which was
removed in 1943.

Isaiah Kidder erected this building in 1808 as a store, a few years
after the Third New Hampshire Turnpike was opened. A son of an early
New Ipswich settler, Kidder (1770-1811) had an interest in the first
cotton mill in New Ipswich and in the State, was one of the originators
of the Turnpike, an Academy Trustee and a State Representative.

Around ten years later, the building was opened as a tavern by Joseph
Newell; his sign is in the Historical Society. Though one of three
taverns in New Ipswich along the Turnpike, this was the only one within
the Village, and is the only one still standing today.

Over the next thirty years, the tavern passed through a number of hands,
though it was always a prominent local gathering place. Beginning in
1867, for ten years it was run as "Clark’s Hotel", by Peter H. Clark.
The Clark family was highly musical and performed around the area.
Peter Clark built the stylish Second Empire house on Main Street (#64).
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During his ownership Clark’s Hotel became a popular summer resort.  In
1892, the Silver family, who later operated Appleton Manor, bought
Clark’s Hotel and operated it under that name until 1910. After that,
James C. Barr bought it and it was used as a private residence, until he
opened it again in 1929 as Willow Brook Tavern. Today it is a
restaurant with office space.

A fire in 1948 damaged the interior, but the building was restored.

On the east side of the property was a barn, now gone, which was
restored and used as a very popular dance hall; torn down in 1979.

#9  Samuel Batchelder, Jr. House, 1813 (Turnpike Road) - Contributing
Building

This unusual unaltered 4-bay by 3-bay brick Federal house was built in
1813 on the north side of the Turnpike. The house sits on a dressed
granite block foundation, and is capped by a hip roof clad with asphalt
shingles. Two tall end chimneys and two additional chimneys toward the
center of the rear rise from the roof. The windows have original 12/12
‘'sash and are flanked by blinds. The main entrance, located in the
second bay from the east, is narrow, with a 6-panel door and a transom
with a leaded circle motif; blinds hang on either side.

A1l 1/2 story ell, formerly a summer kitchen, extends north from the
northwest corner. It has 6/6 sash (the glazing appears to be
replacement), exposed roof rafters and a recessed porch with arched
openings, cut into the northeast corner.

Between the ell and the barn was a carriage house; both structures
burned in 1901. The barn foundation to the north of the house has been
excavated and a sunken garden has been created recently.

The interior of the house 1is distinguished by its arched doorways,
niches and elaborate woodwork of the Federal period, featuring reeding,
rope carving and herringbone carving. In the formal parlor to the
southwest there was French scenic wallpaper, probably printed by Zuber;
it was removed in 1944; there are black-and-white photographs in the
Historical Society. The present owner believes that the colors were
predominantly blue and gray; she was also told that the paper was
purchased by the Metropolitan Museum of Art in New York.
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This house was built by Samuel Batchelder, Jr. (1784-1879), whose father
had settled in New Ipswich in 1785, and begun as a store keeper. He
then built the famous ’'Peppermint Tavern’ on the Turnpike, supposedly
the best public house between Boston and Keene. The son came into his
father’s business as store keeper at the age of 16, and by the age of
twenty he had opened a store in Peterborough. He built the brick ‘01d
Corner Store’ at the junction of Main Street and the Turnpike in 1812,
His considerable fortune was made in the textile business; he was one of
the partners in the second cotton factory in New Ipswich with Charles
Barrett, Jr. and Benjamin Champney, and from there he went on to join
the Boston Associates in establishing textile centers in New England.
He left New Ipswich to start +the Hamilton Manufacturing Co., and was

associated with the Appletons in Lowell. He next started a mill in
Saco, Maine, said to be the most profitable mill in New England at that
time. He retired to Cambridge, Massachusetts and served in the

Massachusetts Legislature.

In the mid-19th century, this was the home of George Sanders (1803-67),
who, with his brother Nathan, who 1lived at #27 further east on the
Turnpike, had a tin shop that stood between this house and the Masonic
Lodge next door (#10). -

The brothers apparently had a second shop just west of Nathan'’s house.
George Sanders had three wives while living here; the first was Caroline
Muzzy, a granddaughter of Rev. Stephen Farrar.

The estate of the subsequent owner, Elias Hudson, sold the house back to
the Batchelder family. Mary Isabella James di Gozaldi, a granddaughter
of Samuel Batchelder, Jr. purchased the house in the early years of the
20th century and owned it until her death in the early 1940’s.

#10 Masonic Lodge, c.1840 (Turnpike and Temple Roads) - Contributing
Building

Situated at a major downtown junction, this south-facing 2 1/2 story
woodframe building is sited gable-end to the Turnpike and rests on a
granite block foundation. It features flat trim, modest eave returns,
6/6 sash and a full width front porch with square posts and balustrade.
The main entrance, found at the center of the gable end (south), has a

glazed wood paneled door from the early 20th century. A single window
flanks it on either side.
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A brick chimney rises from the roof ridge near the front end of the
building. At the rear is a 2-stage wooden exterior stairway that wraps
around the northeast corner, which was used by the Masons to enter the

building when they met on the third floor, before they owned the entire
building.

This structure was built as Heywood & Wood’s Store (pre-1850’s), later
Thayer & Clark and Haywood & Davis and C.B. Davis. It was later a
harness shop, with a tenement above. Just prior to its purchase by the
Masons in 1903, it was Silver’s Store. 1Its present appearance suggests
a major late 19th century remodeling; it is known that a long ell was
removed by the Masons at the time of the purchase.

The Masonic Lodge was founded in New Ipswich in 1815 and, through the
efforts of Frank W. Preston and the generosity of Elizabeth

M. Barrett, widow of George L. Barr, who later married George Robert
Barrett, owner of the Barrett Mansion (#71), the Masons were able to
acquire this building, where they have held their meetings since 1903.

#11 Silas Wheeler House, 1828 (Temple Road) - Contributing Building

The only brick Federal 1 1/2 story house in the Center Village, facing
southeast on Temple Road, this well preserved 5 x 2 bay building on a
granite block foundation features a narrow center entry with single

light transom and a door with 4 recessed molded panels. Windows are
12/12 sash, set in molded surrounds and flanked by blinds. There are
three tall end chimneys. The gable roof 1is covered with asphalt
shingles.

An early frame wing extends from the northeast corner, terminating in a
small woodframe barn set gable-end to the road, with 2 shallow arched
vehicle bays with overhead paneled doors.

Entrances with replacement doors are found on the east and west sides of
the wing.

This house was built by Silas Wheeler (1792-1885), whose wife was Mary
Batchelder, sister of Samuel, who 1lived around the corner in the brick
Federal house on Main Street (#9). Wheeler erected this house in 1828.

During the 1840’s, the property was occupied by Shebuel Shattuck (1797-
1846), who was involved in the mills in Smith Village outside of the
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District. By 1850 the house was used by Thayer & Boynton. Albert G.

Thayer married Sarah Boynton; Thayer, the younger brother of
entrepreneur Stephen Thayer, was a baker, brick maker, blacksmith,
tailor, tin worker and basket maker.

The house was later owned by William Greenman, a cigar manufacturer -
whose shop stood next door. It was the building which had been Benjamin
Champney’s Post Office/Law Office (#33B), originally on its site at #33,
and later returned there. Greenman was also one of the early
proprietors of the restaurant in Union Hall (#58).

#12 01d Blacksmith Shop, mid-19th century (Templé Road) - Contributing
Building

Substantially rebuilt in recent years, this elongated, one story gable-
roof structure, with its long side facing southeast, was used for most
of its life as a blacksmith shop. Its vertical sheathing, 6/6 sash and
narrow doorways, have been replaced with unpainted, roughly finished
-clapboards on the sides visible from the road. The three evenly spaced
windows have new 1/1 sash with 6/6 false muntins. The double doors on
the southeast (front) side are made of vertical boards, as are the two
larger double shed doors in the south gable end whose openings are cut
on the diagonal in the upper corners.

The northeast and northwest elevations remain unaltered, though
deteriorated. Asphalt shingles cover the vertical sheathing and a
single window with 6/6 sash is found on the northwest wall. Roofing
throughout is asphalt shingle.

Located at the northern terminus of the District, this blacksmith shop
dates from the mid-19th century. Local tradition indicates

that this was the shop of Thayer & Boynton, although the 1850 map places
their business further south at #11. The names of the owners do not
appear on subsequent maps. The building, however, continued to function
as a blacksmith shop well into the 20th century, the last such business
in the Village. James Chandler, who lived across the street at #14, and
later Otto Weismann were its last proprietors.
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#13 Webber-Hastings House, c.1780-1800 (Temple Road) - Contributing
Building

One of the earlier houses in the Center Village, this 2 story, 3 bay

Georgian house, on the southeast side of Temple Road retains historic .

architectural features including 8/12 sash, molded window surrounds, and
a projecting gabled entry with full 1length sidelights and a 5-panel
wooden door. The building is sided with asbestos shingles over
clapboard. The central chimney was reduced in size, probably in the
late 19th century. The one story north wing has 6/6 sash and an early 4
panel door at its south end. The interior has 4 panel grained doors and
early woodwork. The building rests close to the ground and street on a
granite foundation. It has been vacant since about 1980 and has
deteriorated.

The early history of this house, like #14 next door, may be linked to
one of George and Nathan Sanders’ tin shops. By 1850 the house belonged
to wheelwright Seth Stratton or Thomas Emery, a farmer; the historic map
of 1850 is unclear.

Josiah Webber (1815-1898) moved here during the 1850’s; the house
remained in his family until recently. Webber was generally regarded as
the leading tailor in town from 1836 until his death. His daughter,
Genevieve, married Frederic Hastings in 1890, and their daughter Mildred
(b. 1891) was the last occupant of the house.

The house likely dates from the earliest years of the Turnpike, reached
by a lane, although its exterior appearance suggests an even earlier
date in the late 18th century. Further visual analysis and historical
research is warranted.

#14 Chandler House, c.1848 (Temple Road) - Contributing Building

This house, facing northwest onto Temple Road, is one of several 5 bay
pedimented Greek Revival houses within the Center Village, a style that
is indigenous to this region. The first floor has a central entrance,
sheltered by a simple early 20th century portico. The paneled door is
flanked by partial sidelights resting on recessed panels. The windows to
the north contain 6/6 sash; to the south and on the south wall is 2/2
replacement sash. Sash on the upper stories and in the north 1 story



NP8 Form 103004 OMB Approval No. 1024-0018
(8-28) -

United States Department of the Interior
Natlonal Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Sectlon number __’ Page __2° NEW IPSWICH CENTER VILLAGE HISTORIC DISTRICT,
NEW IPSWICH, NH
ell are 6/6. A tall chimney rises from either side. The siding is
asbestos shingle. The foundation is granite block in the front, but

rusticated concrete block on the south side, indicating an early 20th
century rebuilding.

The 1850 map indicates a building owned by George and Nathan Sanders

stood here, presumably one of the tin shops they operated. There is - -

another opinion that their shop was further along the road from #13.
This house seems to have a definite residential character, so it may be
true that it is quite separate from the tin shop. Later owners’ names
do not appear on the historic town maps. It is known that James
Chandler, who operated the blacksmith shop across the road at #12, lived

here in the early 1900’s. The house then had a barn attached to the
rear.

#14A Garage - Non-Contributing Building

A modern 2-bay cement block garage faces the street. The gable roof is
asphalt shingle; the front gable is clapboarded and the twin overhead

doors in shallow arches have wooden panels below and four glass panes
above.

#15 Stephen Thayer Cigar Shop, c¢.1850 (Turnpike and Temple Roads) -
Contributing Building

Hidden behind a mid-20th century store front is a Greek Revival
pedimented gable ended house of which, on the south side, the
pedimented section and the second story windows are visible; the east
elevation is intact. The west elevation, which fronts onto Temple Road,
has 2/2 sash like the rest of the building, (originally 6/6), twin
chimneys and flat corner boards. An entrance near the northwest corner
has a mid-20th century door and pedimented hood. Near the southwest

corner, butting into the storefront, is a one story frame addition with
a recessed entry.

A late 19th century photograph shows the house, fronting onto the
Turnpike, with a one story - later 2 stories - columned porch across the
front. The current storefront off the southeast corner is covered with
cedar clapboards, except for a later section at the east end that is
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brick and contains the only entrance. The cut-off diagonal section at
the southwest corner was once the entrance. The storefront walls have
horizontal windows. A modern garage is attached to the rear of the
house.

This building was originally Stephen Thayer’s Cigar Shop, erected <circa -

1850. The Shop was the town’s largest employer for many years,
requiring over 50 workmen, making his business one of the country'’s
leading suppliers. In addition to this enterprise, Thayer operated a

match factory, a store, a lumber mill and, next door, a bakery. His own
house stands on the Turnpike (#26). The Thayer family continued to own
the house and used it for a cigar shop until 1932 when the building was
converted into Fennia’s Market. At that time, the front addition was
constructed; gas pumps stood near the street, since removed.

#16 The Monadnock Bank Automated Teller Machine, 1980 (Turnpike Road) -
Non-Contributing Building

‘This Neo-Greek Revival building is of brick with a glass front with a
central doorway. It has a pedimented portico across the front supported
by four round columns. A small square cupola with a copper roof and
louvered sides sits in the center of the asphalt shingled roof. The
north pediment includes a round window in its center. The structure
serves as a self-service Bank branch.

#17 Mobil Station, 1940 (Turnpike Road) - Non-Contributing Building

This woodframe gable-roof service station sits laterally to the street
on the south side of the Turnpike and is clad with vertical wooden
sheathing. Two service bays with overhead doors are located on the
north facing front. A one story office with brick veneer on its facade
with a wood shingle lean-to roof is attached to the east end.

This stands on the site of the Nichols House, a 2 1/2 story, gable-end
wood structure, torn down in 1916.
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#18 William Hassall House, c.1845/1914 (Turnpike Road) - Contributiﬁg
Building

This handsome Greek Revival house sits on a granite block foundation

with its gable end facing north onto the Turnpike, on a site where an - -

older house once stood. It is a 1 1/2 story sidehall house type,
similar to several others along this stretch of the Turnpike. It has a
pedimented gable with 2 6/6 windows with blinds. The paneled entry is
recessed; its surround is detailed with fretwork and corner blocks with
pateras. The door itself is flanked by multi-grid sidelights. The
original corner posts have been obscured by the shingles now sheathing
the first story. A dormer installed circa 1930 projects from the east
side with a single chimney piercing it. A photograph of about 1904
shows two chimneys on the east side; the front one appears to have been
replaced with the present larger one. The 2/2 window sash of the old
photograph has been replaced with 6/6 in the facade and two recently
installed larger square multi-grid windows. There is a screened porch on
a concrete foundation extending off the southeast corner. A small 1

story gabled ell with a recent oriel window extends to the rear off the
southwest corner.

This house originally stood on Main Street between the Library (#54) and
the Hurd-Newell House (#57). It was built by and for William Hassall
(1799-1874), who was a wheelwright with a shop just north of his house,
on the site of the Library (#54). The house was moved to this new site
in August 1914 by James Barr, who then owned most of the property on the
east side of Main Street between the Turnpike and the 0ld Country Road,
whose family were major benefactors of the Library.

At its new location, the house was lived in by Mr. and Mrs. Fred Asiala
for over 50 years.

#18A Barn, c.1845/1914 - Contributing Building

At its former location a gable ended barn was attached behind the house.
At the time of the moving, it was detached from the house and moved
separately to its present site and placed on a granite rubble foundation
a short distance to the east of the house. The gable end faces the
Turnpike, and its steep roof is clad with asphalt shingles. 'A modern
overhead garage door has been installed in the central opening. The
flat trim of the original sliding barn door is still in place; the door
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is still inside the barn. There are 2 windows with 6/6 sash and flat
trim and blinds. There are 2 similar windows in the rear elevation,
with blinds, on the first and second stories. The west elevation has 2
similar windows and a doorway. The windows on the west and front lack
blinds. The building has flat corner posts, simple molded eaves and
eave returns, in the front and rear. A small chimney rises from the -
rear roof peak. : :

In the backyard a small gabled children’s playhouse with a door and
window in the gable end was installed in 1989. A shed-roof recent
chicken coop is found just behind the barn.

#19 Central School, 1939 (Turnpike Road) - Non-Contributing Building

This brick school is one story with basement; it occupies a concrete
foundation on the north side of the Turnpike and has a flat asphalt roof
with a header course below the roofline. The windows are arranged in
groups of three on the south facade facing the street and in pairs
“elsewhere on the building. It has a covered entrance on the south upper

level with metal supports and 3 other entrances with hoods on the lower
basement level to the west.

Central School was built in 1939 on the site of Stephen Thayer’s Bake
Shop which burned in 1894. The School was the sixth to be built in
District No. 1, replacing the 1860 School on Upper School Street (#42).
It was designed by S. W. Haynes & Associates, and built by M. & P.
Builders & Engineers, Inc. of Nashua, N.H., at a cost of $24,000.

By 1949 the first addition to the building became necessary due to space
requirements. A brick wing in the same style was built off the rear
northeast corner; a second addition matching it was added off the front
southeast corner in 1956.

#19A School House, 1988 - Non-Contributing Building

Behind the School, to the north, stands a one-room school building built
as a temporary classroom because of space needs. There are no plans to
remove it at the present time. It is a rectangular structure on a
foundation covered by exterior plywood. The siding is T-111 exterior
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plywood, and the gabled roof is of asphalt shingles. There are entrance
doors on both north and south, and double casement windows are found on
the east and west, with one on the north. It is similar to the one
found at the Appleton School (#31A), which was built at the same time.

#20 The Monadnock Bank, 1975 (Turnpike Road) - Non-Contiibuting
Building *

This neo-Colonial Revival 1 1/2 story building is woodframe veneered in
brick on the first level. The gable roof is sheathéd in wood shingle.
There is a centrally located open gabled porch entrance on posts on the
north facade, and a smaller one on the west side of the building with a
hip roof. 1In the rear there is a covered portico serving as a drive-in
entrance. A dormer extends the length of the building above it. Four
large windows with 8/8 sash and blinds flank the doorway - others are on
the sides. Gable ends are clapboarded with molded eaves and eave
returns, with a single 8/8 window with blinds.

#21 Matti Lampi House, 1956 (Turnpike Road) - Non-Contributing Building

This 3 bay 1 1/2 story woodframe cape house rests on a concrete
foundation. There is a main entrance with a glazed door on the south
side facing the Turnpike and another in the south facade of a small

recessed ell situated to the east. A single chimney pierces the
roofpeak. The roof is covered with asphalt shingles and includes two
gable dormers. The house has an attached ell with garage doors

extending from the west elevation. Windows are 8/8 with vertical slat
blinds on the first story and 6/6 in the gabled dividers.

This house was built in 1956 on a piece of property separated from the
Earl Farwell House next door (#22).

#22 Earl Farwell House, Late 1870’'s (Turnpike Road) - Contributing
Building

This is one of a handful of French Second Empire houses built in the
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Center Village following the Civil War. It sits on a granite block
foundation. The main entrance on the south facade is sheltered by a
bracketed door hood over double doors with glazed panels. Two l-story
bay windows with 2/2 sash and panels beneath flank the front door. The
house and barn have corner posts with molded caps between a flat frieze
which- runs around the house. The triangular pedimented dormers -
punctuating the Mansard roof of the main house, have scrollwork near the
eave and 2/2 window sash. The same dormer treatment shape is found on
the two windows on the barn/carriage house, built in the same style, but
lacking the scrollwork foot. The barn has two overhead doors set in
square openings. It originally had a single wide opening on the right
side and a 2/2 window on the left. The lower pitch of the Mansard roof
is brown stained wooden shingles; the upper pitch' is black asphalt
shingles. Asphalt shingles also cover the roof of the shed roof porch
containing another entrance in the center of the connecting ell leading
to the barn. A single chimney punctuates the roof.

This house was built by Earl Farwell, who ran a livery stable, in the
late 1870’'s. Later owners included Mellen C. Bragg (1892), Herman
White, Town Clerk during the 1920’s, Lionel Blais, an employee of nearby
Tricnit known for his mechanical skills.

#23 Brown-Eaton House, c.1840 (Turnpike Road) - Contributing Building

This is one of several 5 bay broad-gabled, pedimented Greek Revival
houses in the Central Village, probably built around 1840. A regional
variation of the style, this house has a well preserved and almost
unaltered main block. It rests on a granite block foundation, facing
north, with a granite walkway leading to a period central doorway with a
6-panel door, partial sidelights with recessed panels beneath, and
reeded and blocked surround. The clapboard siding of the front section
appears to be period, as do the windows with 6/6 sash and blinds. The
window surrounds are molded, with small flat corner blocks at the upper
corners. The house has flat corner boards, with molded eaves and
pediment. A single chimney rises from each side of the roof; the west
one has been restored. On both east and west sides of the roof, toward
the front, hip-roofed dormers, each with 2 windows with 6/6 sash and
flat trim, were added in the 1940’s.

Extending behind the house to the south is a 1 1/2 story ell, whose
upper story was also added in the 1940’'s alterations. It also received
the addition of a 2 story bay window on the east elevation, which has
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windows with 6/6 sash in the newer upper story, and 9/9 sash below. A

small gabled dormer with a single 9-light window and flushboard front
was added at the same time on the west of the ell.

After he purchased the house in 1940, Dr. Claire Cayward, the Town’s
only physician, built a 1 story addition to the west of the ell, to -
serve him as a doctor’s office. It has a concrete foundation and. a hip-
roofed asphalt shingled roof. The north-facing doorway has a 6-panel
door with a reeded 4dand blocked surround in the Greek Revival style;
another door on the west has a paneled door with a 9-light window in its
upper section. The window sash is 6/6, and 12/12, with flat trim and

blinds. There are two small windows with diamond muntin grid and flat
trim to the left of the north doorway.

The barn which extends to the rear of the ell was also remodeled into
living quarters in the 1940’'s, without substantially altering its
exterior. A 2 bay garage was excavated underneath it, and a foundation
of rusticated concrete blocks replaced the old foundation. The windows
on the west and south have 6/6 sash on the lower story, and 12/12 sash
on the upper, and the two gabled dormers on the west have windows with

12/12 sash; all with flat trim. The barn has molded eave returns, and
an asphalt shingled roof.

The earliest listed owner of this house was a Mr. Brown, about whom
nothing further is known. By 1850 it belonged to Hosea Eaton (1820-
1879), who by 1858 was living at the Cutting-Eaton House (#43) further
to the west on the Turnpike. Eaton was a public school teacher and
master carpenter, who later became active in political life, acting as
Moderator of Town Meeting for 20 years, serving in the Legislature and
Senate, and as Provost Marshal, with responsibility for the drafting of
soldiers during the Civil War. During the latter part of the 19th
century the house belonged to Oliver Barnett (no apparent relative of
the Charles Barrett family) and to John Barrett. Clarence White, a
subsequent owner, who was Town Clerk for many years, added a columned
porch across the front c. 1915, which was removed in the 1940'’'s

remodeling.

To the west of the house, across the driveway, is an A-frame utility
shed which stands on cement blocks at its corners. It has a sliding
door of tongue and groove boards in its east-facing gable end. The

siding is plywood and the roof is covered with rolled asphalt.
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#24 Hammond-Isaacs-Balch House, 1826 (Turnpike Road) - Contributing
Building

This 5 bay 1 1/2 story house which faces south onto the Turnpike has -

several distinctive features, including a Greek Revival molded entry
surround with paneled corner blocks, transom and full sidelights. The
window sash is replacement 2/2 with blinds. The Kidder History of New
Ipswich of 1852 has an illustration from a drawing by Benjamin Champney,
which shows the house with its roof scuttle mid-way between the twin
chimneys. The 1l-story bay window on the west elevation with 2/2 sash
and narrow blinds was added in 1858, and the rear porch now enclosed was
added in 1871 by C.A. Whitney. A steep gabled recessed l-story wing was
also added to the west on the lower level under the hill. It retains
wooden clapboards, and has two arched openings; the left one with a 6/6
window; the right with an old door of vertical boards. The porch, which
shows in a photograph dated 1901, extends across the front of the house,
and has flat-sawn brackets on chamfered posts; an extension of the main
roof, which is flared at the eaves serves to shelter the porch.
Information from the owner indicates that this is a plank house. The
-building is clad in synthetic siding.

This house was built in 1826 by Elisha L. Hammond, who operated the
Stage Tavern in the Center Village. Hammond’s wife was Elizabeth
Preston, granddaughter of Dr. John Preston (I), and this house was built
at the time of their marriage. Hammond was also a builder; the Appleton

Academy building of 1853 was built under his supervision. He also
performed major renovation work in the Champney-Preston House in 1871
(#63).

Henry Isaacs, the second owner of this house, came to Mason from
Portsmouth about 1816. Around 1822, he arrived in New Ipswich and began
trading in a store on the Turnpike. He was for a time President of the
Bank and active in a variety of business pursuits. After his death in
1846, his son Edward M. Isaacs occupied the house.

Following Edward’s death, both the house and store passed to their long-
time employee Charles A. Whitney (d. 1878). Whitney was also Postmaster
and Town Clerk for around 25 years.

In 1888 the house was purchased by Moses M. Balch, in whose family it
remains. Ten years earlier, Moses Balch had bought a mill on the north
branch of the Souhegan River, near Gibson’s Four Corners (outside of the
District) where he sawed logs and made barrel staves. In 1899 the mill
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was bought by his son, Albro L. Balch, who continued to operate it as a
sawmill until it was destroyed by fire in 1941. Albro Balch resided in
this house as well, and his daughter has been residing there for 74
years, since 1917.

#24A Garage, c.1935/c.1965 - Non-Contributing Building

To the west of the house, on the Turnpike, stands a woodframe garage on
a concrete foundation with an asphalt shingle hip roof. It contains two
overhead garage doors; another smaller bay with a similar small door was
added c.1965 to the west; this portion has a shed roof.

#24B Boat House, 1965 - Non-Contributing Building

A short distance to the north of the house under the hill is a shed- -
roofed woodframe structure on a concrete foundation, built into the
foundation of the barn which burned in 1913. On the west elevation is
an entrance on the right, with a paneled garage overhead door to its
left. Further left is a taller paneled overhead door, which permitted
storage of a boat. §Siding is tongue and groove, with flat trim, and the
roof is clad with asphalt shingle.

#25 Sanders Tin Shop, 1836 (Turnpike Road) - Contributing Building

This tall south facing vernacular Greek Revival 2 1/2 story house with a
side-hall plan is entered through a 4-panel door, flanked by full-
length sidelights, which is hidden by an enclosed shed roof porch roofed
with wood shingles. A south facing c.1865 bay window with 2/2 sash, as
in the rest of the house, with a molded recessed panel beneath is also
roofed with wood shingles. The remainder of the dwelling is clad in
asphalt shingles on the steep gabled roof. Asphalt shingled siding
obscures the corner boards. A 1 1/2 story wing extends to the east with
a window close to the house and a overhead garage door to the east.
This was a handsome longer barn with 2 bays, since shortened and altered
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to the present arrangement.

This was one of two tin shops run by George and Nathan Sanders in the
mid-19th century. Nathan Sanders lived next door in #27; George bought
the Samuel Batchelder, Jr. House (#9), farther west on the Turnpike.

Their second shop stood between it and the Masonic Hall (#10), but has- -

not survived. A third tin shop, operated by Boynton and Stark, stood
across from the Central School site. The Sanders Tin Shop is the only
surviving tin shop in ‘the village, built at a time when tin was used for
cookware, utensils, dishes and many household appliances. 1In 1908 the
building was bought by Albro L. Balch, in whose family it remains.

#26 Stephen Thayer House, 1838 (Turnpike Road) - Contributing Building

This is the only Gothic Revival house in the Village. Constructed in
1838, it is a wood, 1 1/2 story house set gable-end to the Turnpike.
The main house is set on a granite block foundation; 3 bays wide on the
‘north gable end. Three windows with 6/6 sash, blinds and topped with
distinctive lancet-arched louvers set in paneled surrounds -are found in
the first story. The pediment has flush board siding in the tympanum
and includes a similar window with flanking 2/2 sash and blinds.

The west elevation has 5 bays with a recessed 3-bay side porch sheltered
under the main roof. Windows on this side of the building match those
on the north. The inner walls of the porch are flush board; the
remaining first floor walls are clapboard. The door is 8-panel. The
porch features two tapered round columns that are widest at mid-point, a
distinctive element that reflects Egyptian Revival interests of the
period. The two rear bays are enclosed. The two dormers on the west and
three on the east have windows with pointed arch gables and 6/6 sash.

Two period chimneys rise from the roof which is <clad with asphalt
shingle.
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